BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI 

In the Matter of Laclede Gas Company's Purchased Gas Adjustment Tariff Revisions to be Reviewed in Its 2002-2003 Actual Cost Adjustment.
))))
Case No. GR-2003-0224





RESPONSE OF LACLEDE GAS COMPANY

 TO STAFF RECOMMENDATION


COMES NOW Laclede Gas Company (“Laclede” or “Company”) and submits its Response to the Recommendation filed by the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission (“Staff”) in the above-captioned proceedings on December 29, 2004 (the “Recommendation”) and the accompanying Memorandum (“Memorandum”).  In support thereof, Laclede states as follows:

1. Staff’s Recommendation followed its review of Laclede’s 2002-2003 Actual Cost Adjustment (“ACA”) filing docketed in the above referenced case.  The Memorandum covers six pages of comments and includes several recommendations.  This Response addresses only those items expressly recommended by the Staff and certain comments related thereto.  Laclede does not necessarily agree with or acquiesce in other comments in the Memorandum not specifically addressed in this Response. 

Reliability Analysis 

2. In Item No. 1 on page 2 of the Memorandum, Staff states that, in using data from the winter of 2000-2001 to develop an estimate of peak cold day requirements, the Company used only the daily data for the month of December 2000, and did not evaluate data from other months during that winter.  Staff recommends that Laclede “at least consider January and February actual distribution data in its review of peak day estimate.”  In response, Laclede affirms that it has always considered the entire prior winter period when performing its Reliability Analysis for the upcoming winter period.  Accordingly, Laclede considered the entire 2000-2001 and 2001-2002 winter periods in planning for the winter of 2002-2003.  However, the equation obtained from analyzing the month of December 2000 provided the most accurate peak day estimate, verified by comparing the results of various proposed equations to the actual system sendout on the most recent cold winter days. Compared to December 2000, the months of January and February of 2001, along with the entire period considered in the winter of 2001-2002, simply did not have the sustained cold periods necessary to provide a reliable peak day estimate.  Conversely, for the winter of 2004-2005, Laclede in fact chose to use January and February 2004 in peak planning, rather than December 2003, for the same reasons.  In summary, Laclede concurs with the Staff on this point. The Company will continue to consider the entire prior winter period when performing its Reliability Analysis in the future.

3. Also in Item No. 1 on page 2 of the Memorandum, Staff expresses concern that Laclede has not collected daily volumes on customers who subscribe to Laclede’s Interruptible Service.  Because Laclede excludes interruptible volumes in performing peak day planning, Staff would like to review interruptible volumes during cold weather periods to confirm that an accurate estimate is made of the interruptible amounts excluded for peak day planning.  In response, Laclede states that it has to date used estimates of peak day interruptible use because its 16 interruptible customers account for a de minimis amount, about .5%, of total purchases.  Hence, any error in Laclede’s estimate of peak day interruptible use will have a negligible impact on peak day planning.  As a result, Laclede does not believe it is cost effective to send out technicians to each of these sites to download usage history every 45 days.  Nevertheless, as a check on its estimate, Laclede is willing to obtain the daily usage of its 16 interruptible customers for any periods of sustained cold weather that occur during the 2004-2005 winter period.
 

4. In Item No. 4, at the bottom of page 3 and top of page 4 of the Memorandum, Staff recommends that, by March 31, 2005, Laclede develop and maintain an engineering study to support Laclede’s reliance on the deliverability of gas from Lange UGS, and that Laclede provide the logbooks or other data sources containing the Lange underground storage (“UGS”) operational data for November through April of the years 2001, 2003 and 2004.  In response, Laclede maintains that, prior to each winter period, Laclede performs a detailed analysis on actual underground storage activity and pressure data in order to estimate the capability of the Lange field for the upcoming winter season.  The results of this engineering study are graphed as UGS Flow Capability Curves, which are included each year as Exhibit II-G in the Company’s Reliability Report that is provided to Staff.  The UGS Table that is derived from the UGS Flow Capability Curves and used in the reliability planning model is also included in the Reliability Report as Exhibit II-H.  Staff had not previously requested the operational data used to develop the UGS Tables, so Laclede was not aware that Staff wanted this data.  To the extent such data is available, Laclede is willing to make it available to Staff on or before March 31, 2005.

5. Further in Item No. 4 on page 4 of the Memorandum, Staff recommends that Laclede develop and maintain an operating system to monitor the availability of natural gas from Lange UGS during the heating season. In response, Laclede affirms that its Operations and Gas Supply personnel monitor the activity and pressure of the Lange storage field on a daily basis.  The Gas Supply Department incorporates Lange storage activity into its daily Gas Portfolio Report, which is used to monitor daily supply and storage levels.  The Gas Portfolio Reports for the first and last day of each month are provided to Staff each year in the ACA review process.  The Company will continue to maintain this operating system to monitor the availability of natural gas from Lange UGS.

6. Finally, in Item No. 4 on page 4 of the Memorandum, Staff recommends that, by March 31, 2005, Laclede develop a cost/benefit analysis to support the Lange UGS inventory.  Laclede believes that the increased reliability provided by on-system storage alone unquestionably justifies continued maintenance of the Lange UGS facility, not to mention the fact that, by providing over 300,000 MMBtu/day of city gate supply on an early winter peak day, Lange allows the Company to avoid the year-round cost of reserving additional transportation capacity for such supply.  Nevertheless, Laclede agrees to provide a cost/benefit analysis to Staff by March 31, 2005.

7. In Item No. 5 on page 4 of the Memorandum, Staff recommends that, by March 31, 2005, Laclede provide details regarding the reduction of one vaporizer unit at its Catalan propane facility, and provide the source of the rated capacity for the replaced units at Catalan.  Laclede agrees to provide this information to Staff by the date requested.  

Hedging 
8. On page 5 of its Memorandum, Staff indicates that for the 2003-04 ACA review it would like to see specific calculations supporting the price schedule contained in the Company’s Risk Management Strategy.  Accordingly, Staff recommends that the Company provide supporting documentation for its pricing matrices, including electronically readable cell formulas, for that review period.  Laclede agrees to provide this information to Staff.

9. On page 5 of its Memorandum, Staff also recommends that, beginning with the 2004-05 ACA period, for each hedging transaction, the Company provide a brief narrative of the interplay between such transaction and the Company’s Risk Management Strategy.  In response, Laclede confirms Staff’s statement that the Company already provides an explanation of how each financial transaction fits into the Company’s Risk Management Strategy.  Nevertheless, upon approval of these recommendations, Laclede agrees to provide Staff with the narrative requested on a going-forward basis.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Laclede respectfully requests that the Commission issue an order approving Laclede’s 2002-2003 ACA filing, directing Laclede to take the actions set forth herein, and closing this case.


Respectfully submitted,


/s/ Michael C. Pendergast









Michael C. Pendergast  MB #31763 

Vice President - Associate General Counsel







(314) 342-0532 Phone







mpendergast@lacledegas.com 


Rick Zucker  MB #49211


Assistant General Counsel







(314) 342-0533 Phone







rzucker@lacledegas.com

Laclede Gas Company







720 Olive Street, Room 1520


St. Louis, MO 63101


(314) 421-1979 Fax

Certificate of Service


The undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Response of Laclede Gas Company to Staff Recommendation was served on the General Counsel of the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission and the Office of the Public Counsel on this 31st day of January, 2005 by hand-delivery, fax, electronic mail or by placing a copy of such document, postage prepaid, in the United States mail.


/s/ Rick Zucker





Rick Zucker

� Because interruptible customers’ meter equipment retains volume information for only 45 days, it is impossible to produce this information for the 2003-2004 ACA Period. 
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